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Directors’ Report

The Company name was changed from Daton Group Australia Lid to Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical
Group Ltd following shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting of 24 May 2013.

The directors of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd (“New Agri Group”) present their report on the
consolidated entity (Group), consisting of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and the entities it
controlled at the end of, and during, the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Directors
The following persons were directors of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd during the whole of the

financial year and up to the date of this report, unless otherwise stated:

Names

Mr. Jun Xiao (Non-executive chairman)

Mr. Yinan Zhang (Managing director)

Ms. Yan Zhu (Non-executive director)

Mr. Yiming Cui (Non-executive director)

Mr. James Naiming Li (Non-executive director)

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of compound fertiliser specially designed for

wheat/sorghum, cotton, horticulture, sugar cane, banana and pasture.

The Group has invested to set up a company known as Apollo Fertiliser Queensland Pty Ltd with a production
capacity of 400,000 tonnes of compound fertiliser per annum. The fertiliser factory in Australia has commenced
trial production in Feburary 2014.

Financial Performance

The profit after tax for the year decreased from $10,790,455 in 2012 to $1,064,486 in 2013.

The significant decrease in profit after tax mainly resulted from a large decline in the gain from the disposal of its
investments. In 2012 the Group disposed of a subsidiary, Henan Datong Chemical Industry Co., Ltd, and partially
disposed of another subsidiary U&D Mining Industry Pty Ltd, for a total gain before tax of $14 million, whereas the

Group made $3 million gain after tax on the disposal of its remaining interest in U&D Mining Industry Pty Ltd in
2013.

Dividends

No final dividend was proposed for the current financial year (2012: Nil).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Subsequent events

Acquisition of Tenements

On 23rd January 2013, the Group entered into a non-binding indicative proposal with Krucible Minerals Ltd (ASX
code: KRB) to acquire certain phosphate tenements of KRB for a total consideration of $12 million. The transaction
was completed on 16 January 2014, with the payment of the remaining $8,387,000. The rationale of acquiring the
phosphate tenements is consistent with the Group’s intention to secure supply of phosphate, a key component of
compound fertilizer, to its Apollo Fertiliser Project. Upon the transaction completed, the Group will undertake

further exploration works and feasibility studies and will seek partners to develop the phosphate tenements.

Subsequent to year end the Group agreed to extend the repayment term of the remaining balance of $7.452 million
due from the disposal of U & D Mining Industry Pty Ltd from 19 March 2014 to 19 June 2014.

As at the date of this directors' report, except for the matter discussed above, no other matter or circumstance that
has arisen that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the results of
those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in the financial years subsequent to 31 December 2013.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
Significant changes in the state of affairs of the group during the financial year were as follows:

The Group disposed of its ownership interest in U & D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd with a pre-tax gain of
$8,370,102.

There have been no other significant changes in the Group's state of affairs during the financial year.

Environmental Regulation

The Directors are satisfied that adequate systems are in place for the management of its environmental
responsibilities and compliance with its license requirements and regulations. The Directors are not aware of any
breaches of these requirements and to the best of their knowledge, all activities have been undertaken in

compliance with environmental regulations.

Review of Operations

In 2013, the Group changed its name from Daton Group Australia Ltd to Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical
Group Ltd (‘New Agri’). This name change reflects the Group’s intention and aspiration of growing its core business
of agriculture products. It is the Group’s long-term strategy to become a leading enterprise in Australia through
providing a superior product and outstanding customer service.

In order to facilitate the ongoing and the future growth of the Company, in August 2013 the offices were relocated
to a new premise in the Brisbane Technology Park precinct at Eight Mile Plains. The new office features a larger
space for expanding personnel numbers, and is equipped with the latest technology and facilities, with more room
for the Group to expand beyond its current projects and capabilities.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Review of Operations (Continued)

During the past year, the setup of Apollo Fertiliser's production line in Brisbane was the Group’s major priority. All
major construction, fitout and trial production milestones were met during 2013 and were achieved on budget. In
anticipation of the large volume production, changes were made throughout the year on the existing equipment, as
well as new installations including renovations, fittings, and civil engineering. All these installations were completed
on-budget in November 2013.

With the anticipated growth of both the company and its subsidiary the Apollo Fertiliser Plant, the Group has
increased its capital in personnel, in areas such as management, technical, production and sales, as well as
leasing a warehouse in Acacia Ridge with an additional 9,357 square metres of storage space. Production is
anticipated to begin in 2014, and the Group has imported over 6,000 tonnes of raw materials following the
successful trial production in November. When fully operational and on full production capacity, the plant is
expected to have an annual output of 200,000 tonnes of compound fertiliser, which will make Apollo a significant
supplier of locally produced fertiliser to meet the growing agricultural demands in Australia. The Group has also
undertaken sales, marketing and promotional activities in conjunction with the launch of its products.

In January 2013, the Group entered into a non-binding indicative proposal with Krucible Minerals Ltd (ASX code:
KRB) for the acquisition of its phosphate-bearing and any potentially phosphate-bearing tenements, for a
consideration of $12 million. The sales and purchase agreement was executed on 21 May 2013 and was
completed on 16 January 2014, giving the Group the rights to all of Krucible’s qualifying tenements. The total
tenements consist of the Korella trial mining lease, six exploration leases and five exploration applications. This
agreement with Krucible Minerals is expected to provide the Group with a secure supply of phosphate, a key
component for Apollo Fertiliser's compound fertiliser production, as well as an important resource in the
agribusiness sector, which will facilitate the Group’s strategy for continual growth.

U & D Mining Industry Pty Ltd was incorporated as an investment company in 2012. In 2013 the Company
disposed of its 49% shareholding to China Kunlun International Holding Limited (25%) and Golden Globe Energy
Limited (24%) for a total consideration of $29,452,000. On 29 July 2013, the Group received $4 million in deposit
from both companies, totalling $8 million. The second payment of $7 million from each company was received by 9
December 2013. Subsequent to year end the Group agreed to extend the repayment term of the remaining balance
of $7.452 million due from the disposal of U & D Mining Industry Pty Ltd from 19 March 2014 to 19 June 2014. The
profit from the disposal of U & D’s shares constitutes a majority of the Group’s earnings in 2013. Upon the
completion of the transaction, the Group no longer holds any shares in U & D Mining. The profits from this
transaction will be used in the Group’s future growth, most notably in the further expansion of the Apollo Fertiliser

plant and investment in and the exploration of the Group’s phosphate project.
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Outlook and Prospects for 2014 — Likely Developments and Expected Results

The Apollo Fertiliser Plant has commenced production during the first quarter in 2014. The expected production
rate for the plant is 200,000 tonnes per year. The Group intends to establish itself as a trusted manufacturer
producing high quality compound fertiliser in the Queensland region, with a plan to gradually roll out the sale of its
products to other parts of Australia. In 2014 the Group will continuously focus on the production, sales and
marketing of Apollo fertiliser and products.

Following the completion of the acquisition of phosphate assets from Krucible Metals Ltd, the Group will have
access to phosphate, a major ingredient used in the production of compound and other fertiliser products. The
company is examining various funding options to enable completion of a prefeasibility study and intends to invest
approximately $2.5 million for mining and exploration each quarter. The planned production on these tenements is
expected to begin in June 2014 with an estimated monthly output of 50,000 tonnes of phosphate rock. The Group
will utilise the phosphate produced for its Apollo Fertiliser's production and the sale of the balance to the market.

The Group has also incorporated Australia Mercury Glass Pty Ltd in late 2013, a glass manufacturing company
located in Acacia Ridge. Mercury Glass started its operation on 2 January 2014. It is a dynamic company with an
experienced management team and highly skilled staff. The Group expects to see immediate returns on this

investment.

Director Information

Mr. Jun Xiao Chairman (Non-Executive)

Experience

- Mr Xiao graduated with the Bachelor of Management of Information System from Beijing Information
Technology and Engineering Institute in 1992.

- He started his IT career with the Computer and Micro-Electronic Development Research Centre in the Chinese
Institute of Electronics from 1992 until 1997. From 1997, he has served in several senior executive roles in the
field of investment and finance with a focus on the digital technology industry in Hong Kong. Mr Xiao founded
Flash Lighting Company Limited in 2006, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its
investment focuses on mineral resources, equity, and venture capital. In 2009, Mr Xiao was conferred the title
as the honorary professor of Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Science (CASS), the premier
academic research organisation in the fields of philosophy and social science.

- He is the founder of Chinesischr Technology Exchange Foundation, a Non-government Organisation for
affiliating and facilitating the high tech interchange between China and Europe.
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Director Information (continued)

Mr. Jun Xiao (continued) Chairman (Non-Executive)
Interest in Shares 49,019,354 Ordinary Shares

Directorships held in other listed entities

Mr. Xiao is not currently a Director of any other listed company.

Mr. Yinan Zhang Managing Director (Executive)

Experience

- Mr. Zhang invested in Henan Datong in 2007 and he has more than ten years of experience in the chemical
fertiliser industry. He previously held the role of an Executive Director of Henan Datong. His contributions
have built a strong corporate image and are highly reputable in the Chinese fertiliser industry.

- He is experienced in business, foreign investment, banking, finance and securities. He has founded a number
of industrial companies in the PRC and Australia.

- Mr. Zhang has lived in Australia for near to ten years, during which time he gained insight into corporate
operations in Australia and familiarity with the Australian business environment.

Interest in Shares 54,000,003 Ordinary Shares

Special Responsibilities
Mr. Zhang is also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
Directorships held in other listed entities

Mr. Zhang is currently a Director of U&D Coal Ltd (ASX Code: UND, listed on 17 February 2014).
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Director Information (continued)

Mr. Yiming Cui (Non-Executive)

Experience

- Mr. Cui has variety of work experience ranging from publishing to finance. He was previously working for Le
Figaro Magazine, a well-known French publishing company. Mr. Cui also worked within the corporate
finance team of KPMG in China. He has significant experience in financial management and financial

advisory.
Interest in Shares Nil

Special Responsibilities

Mr. Cui is a member of the Audit Committee.

Directorships held in other listed entities

Mr. Cui is not currently a Director of any other listed company.

Ms. Julia Yan Zhu (Non-Executive)

Qualifications

- Master of Business Administration-University of Southern Queensland

- Bachelor and Master of Arts (English) from Shanghai Fudan University

Experience

- Ms Zhu has more than 15 years of experience in the Australian public and private sectors. Her experience
includes facilitating two-way investment and trade between China and Australia in resources, clean energy,
financial services and advanced manufacturing. She is particularly well-versed in the business cultures of
both the PRC and Australia.

- She is now a Director of China business for Minter Ellison Lawyers. Prior to her current role at Minter Ellison,
Ms Zhu worked for the Australian Trade Commission (Austrade) and Invest Australia for total of 15 years.

Interest in Shares Nil
Special Responsibilities
Ms Zhu is the Chair Person of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Directorships held in other listed entities

Ms Zhu is not currently a Director of any other listed company.
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Director Information (continued)

Mr James Naiming Li Non-Executive Director
Qualifications

- Mr Li graduated with a Post Graduate Diploma of Applied Science from Swinburne
University of Technology and a Bachelor of Science from Fudan University in China.

Experience

- Mr Li has worked in the Australian stockbroking industry for more than 16 years. Mr Li has been involved and
actively worked with China companies seeking investments in the mineral and resources sector. He is
currently a non-executive director of Rockland Richfiled Limited and Ishine International Resources Limited.
He is also a licensed stockbroker with Patersons Securities Ltd based in Melbourne.

Interest in Shares Nil

Special Responsibilities

Mr. Li is a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the Chair Person of the Audit Committee.
Directorships held in other listed entities

Mr Li is non-Executive Director of Ishine International Resources Limited (ASX code: ISH)

Company Secretary Information

Ms Yi Yang Company Secretary

Qualifications

- Master of Business — The University of Queensland
- Master of Arts major in Chinese Translation and Interpreting — The University of Queensland

Experience

- Graduated from the University of Queensland with two masters degrees

- Ms Yang has variety of work experience ranging from Administration, Translation & Interpreting to Business
Management

- She is a member of the Chartered Secretaries Australia.

Interest in Shares 164,000 Ordinary Shares

Special Responsibilities

Ms Yang has been appointed as Company Secretary of New Agri Group on 9 February 2011.
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Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, fourteen meetings of directors (excluding commitiees of directors) were held.
Attendances by each director at directors’ meeting, audit and risk committee and remuneration and nominating

committee meetings during the year were as follows:

Committee Meetings
Directors’ Meetings Remuneration
Audit & Nomination
Committee Committee
Number Number Number
eligibleto  Number | eligibleto  Number | eligibleto Number
attend attended attend  attended attend  attended
Mr. Yinan Zhang 14 14 2 2 - -
Mr. Jun Xiao 14 14 - - - -
Ms. Julia Yan Zhu 14 14 - - - -
Mr. Yiming Cui 14 14 2 2 - -
Mr James Naiming Li 14 14 2 2 - -

Share Options

No options over issued shares or interests in the Group or a controlled entity were granted during or since the end of the
financial year and there were no options outstanding at the date of this report.

Remuneration Report - Audited

1. Policy for determining the nature and amount of Key Management Personnel
remuneration

This remuneration report is based on the principles in the Nomination and Remuneration Charter approved by the board
and which has been adopted by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

New Agri Group’s remuneration components include share options and bonus elements. In order to maintain the high
performance of the board and executives, as well as attract and retain the best team to run and manage the Group, the
remuneration and bonus of the directors and senior executives is linked to both the Group’s financial results and the

performance of individual.

The remuneration for the executives is set according to the standard rate from industry sectors. All executives receive a
market related base salary and other statutory benefits. The remuneration is based on factors such as length of service,

experience and performance.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration Report — Audited (continued)

1. Policy for determining the nature and amount of Key Management Personnel remuneration
(continued)

The Group’s profits and shareholders’ value depend on the performance of executives. The objective is to attract the
highest performance of its executives and reward them for performance which results in long term growth in shareholder

wealth.

The share option plan is set by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. At the discretion of the Committee,
shares are issued to executives to reflect their achievements. The exercise price in respect of an option is as
determined by the committee. No share options were issued during the year.

The remuneration for directors is designed by the remuneration committee and the directors do not receive any
other retirement benefits. Remuneration package of key management personnel and executives will be reviewed
annually.

The aim of the remuneration plan is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for time, commitment
and responsibilities. The remuneration committee determines the amount paid to the non-executive directors and
reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties and accountability. Fees for non-executive
directors are not linked to the performance of the Group. However, to align director’s interests with shareholder
interests, the directors and executives are encouraged to hold shares in the Group.

No remuneration consultants were used in the 2013 or 2012 financial years,

Performance based remuneration
As part of each company executives remuneration package there will be a discretionary bonus element. The bonus

given to executives is based on the performance of the Group and individual. The intention of this program is to
align directors and executives interests with business and shareholders’ interests.

In determining the amount of each executive director and executive’s bonus, the remuneration committee bases
the assessment on audited figures and independent reports where appropriate. No bonuses were awarded during
the year.

Company performance, shareholder wealth and directors and executives remuneration

The remuneration plan is designed to increase the common interests between shareholders and directors and
executives. This will be achieved by awarding discretionary bonuses to encourage the alignment of personal and
shareholder interests and increase shareholder wealth and the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position.

The table below shows the gross revenue and profits for the last three years for the Group. There was no bonus
paid to the key management personnel in 2013 due to the profit from this transaction will be used for the Apollo
Fertiliser project and investing in other opportunities. The bonus will be determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration committee in future years when the new compound project starts to contribute positive cash flows

and profits to the Group.
~10~
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration Report — Audited (continued)

1. Policy for determining the nature and amount of Key Management Personnel remuneration
(continued)

The company listed in January 2011 and hence the table below only shows the results for the previous 3 years.

From continuing and discontinued 2013 2012 2011
operations

Revenue 346,861 931,070 25,118,612
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 13,156,828 -
Gain on disposal of associate 8,370,102 - -
Net Profit/(loss) 1,064,486 10,790,455 (22,774,569)
Dividends - - -
Share price at year end (cents) 24 28 25
Total KMP Remuneration 352,945 248,084 351,382

2. Key Management Personnel

The following persons were key management personnel of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

during the financial year:

Name Position Held Appointment / Resignation Date
Directors

Mr. Jun Xiao Director — Chairman Appointed 31/05/2012

Mr. Yinan Zhang Managing Director

Mr. Yiming Cui Director - Non-executive Appointed 01/06/2012

Ms. Julia Yan Zhu Director - Non-executive

Mr. James Naiming Li Director - Non-executive Appointed 02/07/2012

The following persons were key management personnel of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

during the previous financial year:

Name Position Held Appointment / Resignation Date
Directors

Mr. Zeng Li Director — Chairman Resigned 31/05/2012

Ms. Zoe Yan Zhang Director - Non-executive Resigned 02/07/2012

~11~
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration Report — Audited (continued)

3. Details of Remuneration

Details of compensation by key management personnel of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd are

set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2013

Short term benefits Post Termination Longterm
employment benefits benefits
benefits

Salary & Cash Non Super Long Service Total

Fees bonus cash -annuation Leave
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Directors

Mr Jun Xiao 50,000 - - - - 50,000
Mr Yinan Zhang 140,194 - - 12,751 - - 152,945
Mr. Yiming Cui 50,000 - - - - - 50,000
Ms Julia Yan Zhu 50,000 - - - - - 50,000
Mr. James Naiming Li 50,000 - - - - - 50,000
Total 340,194 - - 12,751 - - 352,945

No other payments including share based payments (options) were paid or granted to the above key management
personnel during the year.

No remuneration was dependent on meeting performance measures in the 2013 financial year.

~12~
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Remuneration Report — Audited (continued)

3. Details of Remuneration (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

Short term benefits Post Termination Longterm
employment benefits benefits
benefits
Salary & Cash Non Super Long Service Total
Fees bonus cash -annuation Leave
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Directors
Mr. Jun Xiao
Appointed 31/05/2012 29,167 - - - - - 29,167
Mr. Zeng Li
Resiged 31/05/2012 - - - - - - -
Mr. Yinan Zhang 75,000 - - 6,750 - - 81,750
Mr. Yiming Cui
Appointed 01/06/2012 29,167 - - - - - 29,167
Ms Julia Yan Zhu 50,000 - - - - - 50,000
Ms. Zoe Yan Zhang (1)
Resigned 02/07/2012 33,000 - - - - - 33,000
Mr. James Naiming Li
Appointed 02/07/2012 25,000 - - - - - 25,000
Total 241,334 - - 6,750 - - 248,084

No other payments including share based payments (options) were paid or granted to the above key management

personnel during the year.

No remuneration was dependent on meeting performance measures in the 2012 financial year.

(1) This amount includes the amount of $25,000 (excluding GST) in exchange for services rendered as a

non-executive director and the amount of $8,000 (excluding GST) for accounting services.

~13~



N

NEW AGRIBUSINESS
& CHEMICAL

Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration Report — Audited (continued)

4. Cash Bonuses

No cash bonuses were paid or vested during the year ended 31 December 2013 or 31 December 2012.

5. Share Based Payment Bonuses

No share based payment bonuses were paid or vested during the year ended 31 December 2013 or 31 December
2012.

6. Options and Rights granted as remuneration

No options or rights were granted to key management personnel as compensation during the year ended 31
December 2013 or the year ended 31 December 2012.

7. Equity issued on exercise of remuneration options

No equity instruments were issued during the year ended 31 December 2013 or 31 December 2012 to key

management personnel as a result of options exercised that had previously been granted as compensation.

8. Service Contracts

The Managing Director of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd, Mr. Yinan Zhang, has a five-year
contract agreement with the Company which commences with effect from the listing date and expires on the date
calculated five years from the listing date. The executive director may terminate the agreement and his
employment with the Company without cause during the initial term and any additional term on the giving of 90

days written notice to the Company. There is no termination pay in the contract.
Non-executive Directors have service contracts with Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd. New Agri
Group has to pay each director annually based on market rates as consideration for agreeing to hold the position.

There is no agreement by Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd to pay non-executive directors any

pre-determined amounts in the event of their termination.

End of audited remuneration report

~14~
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Indemnifying Officers or Auditors

Insurance premiums paid for directors

During the year Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd paid a premium of $17,376 (2012: $16,305) in
respect of a contract insuring directors and of the company and its controlled entities against a liability incurred as
director and to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of

the nature of the liability.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law,
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the company or any of its controlled entities against a

liability incurred as such an officer or auditor.

Non-audit services

During the financial year, the following fees for non-audit services were paid or payable to the auditor, BDO Audit

Pty Ltd, or their related entities:

2013 2012
$ (excl GST) $ (excl GST)
Non-audit Services
- Taxation services 75,590 22,000
Total 75,590 22,000

On the advice of the audit committee, the directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the

auditor did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following

reasons:

. all non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit committee to ensure that they do not impact the
integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

. none of the non-audit services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out
in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

Auditor’'s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been received and can be

found on page 17 of the financial report.

~15~
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Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings
on behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party, for the purpose of
taking responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the company with leave of the Court under section
237 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors:

B

Mr Yinan Zhang

Dated this 31" day of March 2014

~16~
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY ANTHONY WHYTE TO THE DIRECTORS OF AUSTRALIA NEW
AGRIBUSINESS & CHEMICAL GROUP LTD

As lead auditor of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group for the year ended 31 December 2013,
| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and the entities it
controlled during the period.

A J Whyte

Director

BDO Audit Pty Ltd

Brisbane, 31 March 2014

BDO Audit Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 022 870 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050

110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited 17
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional

Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenue from continuing operation

Other income

Administration expenses

Occupancy expenses

Finance costs

Other expenses

Share of loss of associates accounted for using the equity
method

Profit before income tax expense

Income tax expense

Profit from continuing operations

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences

Reclassification of foreign currency translation differences
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit/(loss) is attributable to

Owners of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

Non-controlling Interest

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to
Owners of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

Non-controlling Interest

CONSOLIDATED

Note 2013 2012

$ $
3 346,861 931,070
4 8,396,110 10,740,704
(2,057,571) (1,663,513)
5 (421,930) (70,680)
5 (100,481) (146,515)
(41,808) -
19(d) (2,223,694) (12,032)
3,897,487 9,779,034
6 (3,554,895) (258,233)
342,592 9,520,801
6,8 721,894 1,269,654
1,064,486 10,790,455
- 141,890
- 1,303,220
- 1,445,110
1,064,486 12,235,565
1,064,486 10,858,303
- (67,848)
1,064,486 10,790,455
1,064,486 12,303,413
- (67,848)
1,064,486 12,235,565

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

18



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CONSOLIDATED

Note 2013 2012
Earnings per share for profit for the year 7 Cents Cents
Overall operations
Basic earnings per share 0.50 5.82
Diluted earnings per share 0.50 5.82
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 0.16 5.14
Diluted earnings per share 0.16 5.14
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 0.34 0.68
Diluted earnings per share 0.34 0.68

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying note



25

NEW AGRIBUSINESS
& CHEMICAL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

CONSOLIDATED
Note 2013 2012
$ $
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 10,859,364 14,849,606
Other financial assets 12 413,642 1,016,897
Trade and other receivables 13 8,487,140 54,391
Inventories 14 2,613,924 -
Other assets 15 751,214 212,505
Total current assets 23,125,284 16,133,399
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 15,121,749 12,975,915
Other financial assets 17 1,372,901 -
Other assets 15 4,924,021 -
Investments in associates accounted for using the equity
method 19 - 12,352,651
Total non-current assets 21,418,671 25,328,566
Total assets 44,543,955 41,461,965
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 7,051,888 8,582,640
Borrowings 21 700,000 -
Current tax liabilities 3,929,201 1,096,200
Other liabilities 15,255 -
Total current liabilities 11,696,344 9,678,840
Total liabilities 11,696,344 9,678,840
Net assets 32,847,611 31,783,125
EQUITY
Contributed equity 22 36,615,244 36,615,244
Accumulated losses (3,767,633) (4,832,119)
Total equity 32,847,611 31,783,125

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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NEW AGRIBUSINESS

& CHEMICAL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CONSOLIDATED
At 1 January 2012

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences

Reclassification of foreign currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Transfer surplus reserves to accumulated losses as a result of
disposal of subsidiary

New shares issued resulting from conversion of notes
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary disposed

Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

At 31 December 2012

Attributable to owners of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

Contributed Retained Surplus Foreign Total Non-controlling Total
Equity Earnings/ Reserves Currency Parent Interests Entity
(Accumulated Translation
losses) Reserve
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

28,115,244 (16,470,471) 780,049 (1,445,110) 10,979,712 11,148 10,990,860
- 10,858,303 - - 10,858,303 (67,848) 10,790,455
- - - 141,890 141,890 - 141,890
- - - 1,303,220 1,303,220 - 1,303,220
- 10,858,303 - 1,445,110 12,303,413 (67,848) 12,235,565
- 780,049 (780,049) - - - -
8,500,000 - - - 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
- - - - - 56,700 56,700
8,500,000 780,049 (780,049) - 8,500,000 56,700 8,556,700
36,615,244 (4,832,119) - - 31,783,125 - 31,783,125

The above Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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NEW AGRIBUSINESS
& CHEMICAL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Attributable to owners of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

Contributed Retained Surplus Foreign Total Non-controlling Total
Equity Earnings/ Reserves Currency Parent Interests Entity
(Accumulated Translation
losses) Reserve

CONSOLIDATED $ $ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 January 2013 36,615,244 (4,832,119) - 31,783,125 - 31,783,125
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - 1,064,486 - 1,064,486 - 1,064,486
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,064,486 - 1,064,486 - 1,064,486
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners - - - - - -
At 31 December 2013 36,615,244 (3,767,633) - 32,847,611 - 32,847,611

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Interest paid

NET CASH USED IN BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Payments for investment in associate

Proceeds on disposal of associate

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed

Proceeds on loss of control of subsidiary

Payments for exploration and evaluation assets

(Increase)/decrease in term deposits with maturity over three

months

Loans to third parties

NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Loan from related parties

Repayment of loan from related parties

Loan from third parties

NET CASH (USED IN)/PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in

foreign currency

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Note

26

19(b)
19(c)
8
19(c)

1

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
216,909 299,908
(5,458,257) (1,988,865)
192,459 958,489
(62,391) (129,247)
(5,111,280) (859,715)
(2,452,130) (11,438,480)
14,000 -
(10,952,941) -
22,000,000

- 10,783,498
- 539,700
(4,614,021) (24,144,252)
(763,067) 7,435,080
(1,019,200) (1,000,000)
2,212,641 (17,824,454)
2,205,508 26,600,000
(1,505,508) (7,951,977)
- 5,315,577
(1,849,725) (6,060,250)
58,122 -
(1,091,603) 17,903,350
(3,990,242) (780,819)
- 311
14,849,606 15,630,114
10,859,364 14,849,606

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Company name was changed from Daton Group Australia Ltd to Australia New Agribusiness &
Chemical Group Ltd following shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting of 24 May 2013.

The consolidated financial statements of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
31 March 2014, which covers Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd as a consolidated entity
consisting of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd (“the parent company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group” or “consolidated entity”) as required by the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars.

Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd is a company limited by shares incorporated in
Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical

Group Ltd is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued

by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements have also been prepared on a historical cost basis. Non-current assets and
disposal groups held-for-sale are measured at the lower of carrying amounts and fair value less costs to

sell.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial

statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current period or
any prior period and are not likely to affect future periods. However, amendments made to AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements effective 1 July 2012 now require the statement of comprehensive
income to show the items of comprehensive income grouped into those that are not permitted to be
reclassified to profit or loss in a future period and those that may have to be reclassified if certain

conditions are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

a) Basis of Preparation (continued)

Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity, Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd,
included in note 28, has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements,

except as follows:

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment. Dividends received
from associates and joint venture entities are recognised as revenue in the parent entity's profit or loss,
rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of the investment.

b) Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Australia New Agribusiness &
Chemical Group Ltd and its subsidiaries at 31 December each year ("the Group"). The group has control
over an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity, and has the ability to use its power to affect those returns. Consolidated financial statements
include all subsidiaries from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent, using

consistent accounting policies.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from intragroup
transactions have been eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively. Total comprehensive income is attributable to owners of Australia New
Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a debit balance.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the consolidated

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Basis of Consolidation (continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method of accounting, the Group's share of post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and the Group's share of post-acquisition other comprehensive
income of associates is recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends
received from associates are recognised in the parent entity's profit or loss, while they reduce the
carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated financial statements.

When the Group's share of post-acquisition losses in an associate exceeds its interest in the associate
(including any unsecured receivables), the Group does not recognise further losses unless it has
obligations to, or has made payments, on behalf of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are used to apply the equity method. The end of the reporting
period of the associates and the parent are identical and both use consistent accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interest

Transactions with non-controlling interests that increase or decrease the Group's ownership interest in a
subsidiary, but which do not result in a change of control, are accounted for as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. An adjustment is made between the carrying amount of the Group's controlling
interest and the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests to reflect their relative values in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to the non-controlling interest and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd.

Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary but retains significant influence, joint control, or an
available-for-sale investment, the retained interest is remeasured to fair value at the date that control is
lost and the difference between fair value and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the retained investment in associate, jointly controlled entity or
available-for-sale financial asset. If no ownership interest is retained, or if any remaining investment is
classified as available-for-sale, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of the entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities and may be recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the Group retains significant influence
or joint control, balances of other comprehensive income relating to the associate or jointly controlled
entity will only be reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss to the extent of the
reduced ownership interest so that the balance of other comprehensive represents the Group's

proportionate share of other comprehensive income of the associate/jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

c) Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the
continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the
ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2013 the Group’s current assets exceeds its current liabilities by $11,428,940 and the
group has commitments due within the next 12 months of $10,665,701. Net current assets less
commitments at 31 December 2013 is $763,239.

Included in current assets at 31 December 2013 is $7,452,000 receivable for the disposal of the Group’s
49% interest in U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd (U&D). This balance was due to be repaid by 19
March 2014. Subsequent to year end the repayment of this balance has been extended to 19 June 2014.
Included in commitments due in the next 12 months is $8,387,000 due on completion of the acquisition of
certain phosphate tenements from Krucible Minerals Ltd. This balance was paid on 16 January 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group did not generate any revenue except for interest
income and incidental rental income. It is anticipated that the Apollo Fertiliser Plant will commence
production during the first half of 2014.

In forming the view that the Group is a going concern the directors had assumed that:
e The $7,452,000 receivable from the disposal of U&D will be collected within the next 12 months;
and

e The Group will be able to raise capital when required.

Should the above assumptions not eventuate, there exists a material uncertainty regarding the
Company’s and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and realise its assets and settle its
liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial
statements. No adjustments have been made to the financial statements relating to the recoverability and
classification of the assets and the carrying amounts and classification of liabilities should the director’s

assumptions not eventuate.

d) Non-current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are those assets whose carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. These assets are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
and are not depreciated or amortised. Interest expenses continues to be recognised on liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Non-current Assets Classified as Held for Sale (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset but

not exceeding any cumulative impairment losses previously recognised.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical operations, is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented

separately in profit or loss.

e) Foreign Currency Translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency').
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Australia New
Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd’s presentation and functional currency.

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from settling foreign currency transactions, as well as from restating foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or where they relate to
differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign

entity.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined.

Translation of foreign operations

At the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the overseas subsidiaries are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period and
income and expenses are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. All resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income as a separate component of equity
(foreign currency translation reserve). On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in foreign currency translation reserves relating to that particular foreign operation

is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. The following specific recognition

criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the buyer and can be reliably measured. Risks and rewards are considered passed to buyer
when goods have been delivered to the customer. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales

taxes.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. The effective interest
method uses the effective interest rate which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

receipts over the expected life of the financial asset.

Lease Income

Leases of property, plant and equipment, when the Group, as lessor retains a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating leases is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate cost of incentives is

recognised as a reduction in rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial position based on their nature.

g) Income tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based
on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, between carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases, at the tax
rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates
which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. Exceptions are made for certain
temporary differences arising on initial recognition of an asset or a liability if they arose in a transaction,
other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting

profit or taxable profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g) Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the parent entity is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax balances relating to amounts recognised directly in other comprehensive

income or equity are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Tax consolidation
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and its wholly owned Australian subsidiaries have
formed an income tax consolidated group under tax consolidation legislation. The Group notified the Tax

Office that it had formed an income tax consolidated group to apply from 1 January 2012.

Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd is the head entity in the tax consolidated group. Each
entity in the Group recognises its own current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. These tax amounts
are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand alone taxpayer in its
own right. In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises the
current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

The tax consolidated group has not entered a tax-funding arrangement.

h) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any indication that individual
assets are impaired. Where impairment indicators exist, recoverable amount is determined and
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss where the asset's carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate recoverable amount for an individual asset, recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and
at bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.

j) Short-term deposits with maturity over three months
Short-term deposits with maturity over three months are excluded from cash and cash equivalents and

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

k) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised at original invoice amounts less an allowance for uncollectible amounts

and have repayment terms between 60 and 90 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is assessed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. An allowance is made for doubtful debts where there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. Objective
evidence of impairment includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts overdue for
a long time. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectible the gross carrying value of the

asset is written off against the associated provision.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable for which an
impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

against other expenses in profit or loss.

I) Inventories

Raw Materials, Work in Progress and Finished Goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Fixed overheads are allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to inventories using the weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated selling cost of completion and selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

m) Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate,

re-evaluates this designation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets of the Group are classified in one category as following:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,

less any impairment.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired. These are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months

after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current.

Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a

financial instrument has been impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal

payments and amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Fair value
Fair values may be used for financial asset and liability measurement and well as for sundry disclosures.

Fair values for financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price for financial assets is the current bid price and the

quoted market price.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using
valuation techniques. Assumptions used are based on observable market prices and rates at the end of

the reporting period.

The fair value of long-term debt instruments is determined using quoted market prices for similar
instruments. Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value of the remaining

financial instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

o) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, including costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended

by management, less depreciation and any impairments.

The depreciable amounts of all fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives to the economic entity commencing from the time the assets are held ready for use.

Assets are depreciated over their useful lives as follows:

Machinery & motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment 2-10 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the asset's carrying amount and are included in profit or loss in the year that the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

p) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the
year end and which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and have 60 days to 2 years payment

terms.

q) Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the loans

and borrowings using the effective interest method.

All borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that it is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

r) Employee benefit provisions

Short-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and accumulating sick leave
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period are recognised in
other liabilities in respect of employees' services rendered up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating

sick leave are recognised when leave is taken and measured at the actual rates paid or payable.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities for long service leave and annual leave not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are recognised as part of the provision for employee benefits and
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given to expected future salaries and wages levels, experience of employee departures and periods of
service. Expected future payments are discounted using national government bond rates at the end of
the reporting period with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated

future cash outflows.

Regardless of when settlement is expected to occur, liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

r) Employee benefit provisions (continued)

Bonus

The Group recognises an expense and a liability for bonuses when the entity is contractually obliged to
make such payments or where there is past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

s) Contributed equity
Contributions by shareholders are classified as equity. Costs directly attributable to capital raising are
shown as a deduction from the equity proceeds.

t) Dividends
Provision is made for dividends declared and no longer at the discretion of the Group, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

u) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses of Australian entities are recognised net of GST except where GST incurred on a
purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation

authority, are classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority.

v) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash
flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

v) Financial guarantee contracts (continued)
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

w) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of Australia New
Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd , adjusted for the after-tax effect of preference dividends on
preference shares classified as equity, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares during the year. The weighted
average number of issued shares outstanding during the financial year does not include shares issued as
part of the Employee Share Loan Plan that are treated as in-substance options.

Diluted earnings per share

Earnings used to calculate diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the basic earnings by
the after-tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
weighted average number of shares used is adjusted for the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

x) Critical accounting estimates & judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Recoverability of Other Receivables

Included in other receivables is $7,452,000 representing the outstanding consideration on the disposal of
U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd (‘U&D’). $3,800,000 is owed from China Kunlun International
Holding Limited and $3,652,000 is owed from Golden Globe Energy Limited.

Under the terms of a Deed of Amendment signed on 6 December 2013 these amounts were due within
30 days of U&D’s successful listing on the ASX, unless extended to a later date as agreed between the
parties in writing. U&D listed on 19 February 2014, making the repayment date 19 March 2014.
Subsequent to year end the repayment date was extended by three months to 19 June 2014.
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Note 1:

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

x) Critical accounting estimates & judgements (continued)

Recoverability of Other Receivables (continued)

Should these amounts not be received in accordance with the revised agreement the actual outcome of

this transaction may differ from that presented.

y) Accounting standards issued, not yet effective

The following new/amended accounting standards have been issued, but are not mandatory for the year

ended 31 December 2013. They have not been adopted in preparing the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2013 and may impact the Group in the period of initial application. In all cases the

Group intends to apply these standards from the mandatory application date as indicated in the table

below.

Standards likely to have a financial impact

AASB Title and Nature of Change Applicatio | Impact on Initial Application
reference Affected n date:

Standard(s):
AASB 9 (issued | Financial Amends the requirements for | Periods Adoption of AASB 9 is only
December 2009 | Instruments classification and measurement | beginning mandatory for the 31
and amended of financial assets. on or after December 2017 year end. The
December 2010) The following requirements 1 January entity has not yet made an

2017 assessment of the impact of

have generally been carried

forward unchanged from AASB

139 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement

into AASB 9. These include the

requirements relating to:

e C(Classification and
measurement of financial
liabilities; and

e Derecognition requirements
for financial assets and
liabilities.

However, AASB 9 requires that

gains or losses on financial

liabilities measured at fair value
are recognised in profit or loss,
except that the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit
risk are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

these amendments.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

y) Accounting standards issued, not yet effective (continued)

Standards likely to have a disclosure impact only

AASB Title and Nature of Change Applicatio | Impact on Initial
reference Affected n date: Application
Standard(s):
AASB  2013-9 | Amendments Makes three amendments to | Annual The application date of
(issued to  Australian | AASB 9: reporting AASB 9 has been deferred
December 2013) | Accounting e Adding the new hedge periods to 1 January 2017. The
Standards = — accounting requirements beginning | entity has not yet made an
l(:Donceptu?(I into AASB 9 on or after | assessment of the impact of
ramework,
Materiality and | ® Deferring the effective date 1 January | these amendments.
Financial of AASB 9 from 1 January 2017
Instruments 2015 to 1 January 2017, and

e Making available for early
adoption the presentation of
changes in ‘own credit’ in
other comprehensive
income (OCI) for financial
liabilities under the fair value
option without early applying
the other AASB 9
requirements.

All other pending standards have no material application to the Group.
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Note 2: Segment Reporting

(a) Description of segment

The Group segment information is presented using a 'management approach’, i.e. segment information is
provided on the same basis as information used for internal reporting purposes by the chief operating
decision maker (the board of directors that make strategic decisions). Operating segments have been
determined on the basis of reports reviewed by the board of directors that make strategic decisions. The
board of directors monitor the segment performance based on the net profit after tax of the period.

Accordingly, management currently identifies that the Group has only one reportable segment, being
manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser and its by-products to domestic market in Australia. The
financial results from this segment are equivalent to the financial statements of the Group for the period
ended 31 December 2013.

For the period ended 31 December 2012 the board considered that the Group had the following reportable

segments:

Compound Fertiliser Apollo: Manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser and its by-products to
domestic market in Australia

Corporate: Group treasury and head office activities

U&D Mining: Exploration of EPC 818 coal mine to secure the coal supply of the compound fertiliser
project. The Group determined that it no longer had control over U & D and accordingly U & D was not
considered to be a subsidiary and became an associate prior to 31 December 2012.

Discontinued operation — China Urea Manufacturing: manufacturing and sale of fertiliser and its
by-products to domestic customers in P. R. China. This segment was classified as held for sale upon

board resolution on 12 September 2011.
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Note 2: Segment Reporting (continued)

(b)  Segment information

Segment information provided to the board of directors for the year ended 31 December is as follows:

31 December 2012

Sales revenue

Other revenue
Total segment
revenue from
external customers

Depreciation
Interest revenue
Interest expense

Income tax expense
Share of loss of
associates accounted
for using the equity
method

Net (loss)/profit after
tax

Total segment assets
include: addition to
non-current assets
include: investments
in associates
accounted for using
the equity method

Total segment
liabilities

(c) Entity-wide disclosures

Compound Total
Discontinued
Fertilizer Corporate continuing
operation
U & D Mining Apollo operation Total

$ $ $ $ $
- - 931,070 931,070 - 931,070
- - 931,070 931,070 - 931,070
(3,363) (3,985) (3,508) (10,856) - (10,856)
361,532 5,363 340,912 707,807 - 707,807
- (128,966) (281) (129,247) (543,506) (672,753)
- - (258,233) (258,233) (837,967) (1,096,200)
- - (12,032) (12,032) - (12,032)
(169,616) (174,895) 9,865,312 9,520,801 1,269,654 10,790,455
- 13,998,665 27,463,300 41,461,965 - 41,461,965
218,662 12,953,137 6,771 13,178,570 - 13,178,570
- - 12,352,651 12,352,651 - 12,352,651
- 372,939 9,305,901 9,678,840 - 9,678,840

Product and services

The board considers that the Group only has one product type being sold which is fertiliser.

Geographic information

Sales revenue and non-current assets are all located in Australia.

Major customers

No revenue is generated from the sale of fertiliser in 2013 (2012:nil).
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CONSOLIDATED
Note 2013 2012
$ $
Note 3: Revenue
Continuing operation
Rental income 183,063 223,263
Interest revenue 163,798 707,807
346,861 931,070
Note 4: Other Income
Continuing operation
Gain on loss of control (a) - 10,499,677
Gain on disposal of associate (b) 8,370,102 -
Sundry income 26,008 241,027
8,396,110 10,740,704
Discontinued operation
Gain on disposal of subsidiary 8 - 2,657,151
- 2,657,151

a) Gain on reduction of ownership interest in subsidiary

The total gain of $10,499,677 is related to the disposal of 11% of its ownership in a subsidiary, U&D Mining
Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd (‘U&D’), during the year ended 31 December 2012. It is the net amount of a
loss of $1,934,461 on the portion sold and a gain of $12,434,138 attributable to re-measuring the 49%
retained interest to its fair value at the date when control is lost. Refer to Note 19 for more information.

b) Gain on disposal of associate
On 13 November 2013 the Group disposed of the remaining 49% of its ownership in an associate, U&D.
Refer to Note 19 for more information.
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CONSOLIDATED
2013 2012
Note $ $
Note 5: Expenses

Profit from continuing operations before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Depreciation expense

Machinery and vehicles 23,068 8,528
Furniture, fittings and equipment 5,544 2,328
28,612 10,856

Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries 1,241,009 451,068
Defined contribution superannuation 91,092 39,461
1,332,101 490,529

Finance costs

Interest expenses 67,050 129,247
Bank fees 33,431 17,268
100,481 146,515
Operating lease expenses — minimum lease payments 421,930 70,680
Net foreign exchange loss 38,061 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,299 -

Profit from discontinued operations before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Finance costs

Interest expenses - 543,506
Bank fees - 224
- 543,730
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries - 81,942
- 81,942

Reversals of provisions for doubtful debts - (76,645)
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CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Note 6: Income Tax Expense
Major components of income tax expense are:
Current tax expense
Current tax expense 1,186,093 1,096,200
Adjustments for previous years 1,646,908 -
2,833,001 1,096,200
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Total income tax expense in profit or loss 2,833,001 1,096,200
Income tax expense applicable to:
-Continuing operations 3,554,895 258,233
-Discontinued operations (721,894) 837,967
2,833,001 1,096,200

In 2013, the Group notified the Tax Office that it had formed an income tax consolidated group to apply
from 1 January 2012. The income tax benefit recognised for the year ended 31 December 2013 results

from an over accrual of tax in the prior period.
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CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $

Note 6: Income Tax Expense (continued)
Reconciliation
Profit from continuing operations before income tax
expense 3,897,487 9,779,034
Profit from discontinued operations before income tax
expense - 2,107,621
Accounting profit before income tax 3,897,487 11,886,655
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%) 1,169,246 3,565,997
Non-deductible expenses:
- entertainment 3,704 356
- other non-deductible expenses 13,143 8,646
Accrued interest income - (15,357)
Disposal of subsidiary - 40,822
Deregistration of subsidiary - (2,700,000)
Loss of control of subsidiary - 269,696
Deferred tax assets not recognized for tax losses - 52,430
Deferred tax assets not recognized for subsidiaries
disposed - 187,949
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - (341,816)
Difference in overseas tax rate - 27,477
(Over)/ under provision in prior years 1,646,908 -

Income tax expense 2,833,001 1,096,200




25

NEW AGRIBUSINESS
& CHEMICAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Note 6: Income Tax Expense (continued)
Recognised deferred tax assets
(i) Unused tax losses - -
(i) Deductible temporary differences 5,943 15,357
5,943 15,357
Recognised deferred tax liabilities
Assessable temporary differences 5,943 15,357
5,943 15,357
Net deferred tax recognised - -
Unrecognised temporary differences and tax losses
Unused tax losses and temporary differences for
which no deferred tax asset has been recognised - 178,439
Potential tax benefit @ 30% - 53,532

In 2012 the unused tax losses of $178,439 represent the tax losses incurred by Australian entities. There
is no expiry date on the future deductibility of these unused tax losses.
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CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Note 7: Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to owners of Australia New Agribusiness
& Chemical Group Ltd used to calculate basic earnings per
share:
Profit from continuing operations 342,592 9,588,649
Profit from discontinued operations 721,894 1,269,654
1,064,486 10,858,303
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to owners of Australia New Agribusiness
& Chemical Group Ltd used to calculate diluted earnings
per share:
Profit from continuing operations 342,592 9,588,649
Profit from discontinued operations 721,894 1,269,654
1,064,486 10,858,303
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 211,115,355 186,617,735
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 211,115,355 186,617,735

Diluted earnings per share are equal to basic earnings per share as the Group has not issued any dilutive

instruments.
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Note 8: Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation

On 12 September 2011 the board of directors of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd
resolved to sell its Urea Manufacturing business (Henan Datong Chemical Co., Limited (Henan Datong)
and Zhengzhou Jinyitong Scientific & Technology Development Co., Limited (Jinyitong)) in P. R. China.
The Urea Manufacturing business was reported as a discontinued operation in 2011 financial year. Henan

Datong and Jinyitong were disposed of effective 26 June 2012.

Financial information relating to the discontinued operations from 1 January 2012 to 26 June 2012 (date of

disposal) is set out below. Further information is set out in Note 2 - Segment Information.

For period

2013 ended 26 June

Note 2012

$ $

Revenue and other income - -

Expenses 5 - (549,530)

Loss before tax - (549,530)

Income tax expense - -

Net loss attributable to discontinued operations - (549,530)

Gain on disposal of operation including a cumulative

exchange loss of $1,303,220 reclassified from foreign

currency translation reserve to profit and loss - 2,657,151

Income tax benefit/(expense) 6 721,894 (837,967)

Gain on disposal of discontinued operation after income tax 721,894 1,819,184

Profit from discontinued operation 721,894 1,269,654
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Note 8: Discontinued operation (continued)

Cash flow information for 1 January 2012 to 26 June 2012:

For period
ended 26 June
2012

$
Net cash inflow from operating activities 55,433
Net cash inflow from investing activities 4,690,661
Net cash outflow from financing activities (4,751,977)
Net decrease in cash generated by discontinued operations (5,883)

Information relating to the financial position of the discontinued operations on disposal date (26 June 2012)

is as follows:
As at 26 June
2012

$

Cash and cash equivalents 16,502
Trade and other receivables 205,394
Inventories 1,342,076
Property, plant and equipment 26,671,734
Lease prepayments 416,568
Long term receivables 1,564,154
TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 30,216,428
Trade and other payables 6,224,813
Current financial liabilities 11,351,722
Current tax liabilities 51,416
Other liabilities 2,714,405
Non-current financial liabilities 3,034,443
TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,376,799

NET ASSETS 6,839,629
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Note 8: Discontinued operation (continued)

The gain on sale of the discontinued operations has been calculated as follows:

Consideration received

Carrying amount of net assets sold

Cumulative exchange loss in foreign currency translation reserve
reclassified from equity to profit and loss on disposal of subsidiary
Gain on sale before income tax

Income tax expense

Gain on sale after income tax

Net cash inflow on disposal of discontinued operations

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of

Note 9: Auditor’s Remuneration

CONSOLIDATED
2012
$
10,800,000
(6,839,629)

(1,303,220)

2,657,151
(837,967)

1,819,184

CONSOLIDATED
2012
$
10,800,000
(16,502)

10,783,498

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by BDO:

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $

Audit services
BDO Audit Pty Ltd
Audit and review of financial statements 83,700 83,439
Taxation services
BDO (QLD) Pty Ltd
Tax services 75,590 22,000
Total remuneration of BDO 159,290 105,439
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Note 10: Dividends

No dividend for the full year ended 31 December 2013 has been declared or paid to shareholders by the
Group (2012: nil). The balance of the franking account is $3,881,063 (2012: $1,096,200).

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the reporting period,
adjusted for:
(a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax
(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the
reporting date, and
(c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the
reporting date.

The amount shown above includes franking credits that would be available to the parent entity if
distributable profits of subsidiaries were paid as dividends.

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 5,156 922
Cash at bank 10,854,208 1,248,684
Cash equivalent - 13,600,000
Cash and cash equivalents 10,859,364 14,849,606

Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Cash at bank bears a floating interest rate from 0% to 3.65% (2012:
0%-4.35%). Cash equivalent represents two months term deposits with the Commonwealth Bank of
Australia and bears fixed interest rates from 4.5% to 4.6%.

Concentration of risk by banks

Commonwealth Bank — S&P Rating of A-1+ (2012: A-1+) 677,474 13,871,030
ANZ Bank — S&P Rating of A-1+ (2012: A-1+) 97,928 761,514
Bank of China — S&P Rating of A-1 (2012: A-1) 49,772 216,140
China Construction Bank — S&P Rating of A-1 10,029,034 -

10,854,208 14,848,684
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CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $

Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
Reconciliation for the consolidated statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year representing
Continuing operations 10,859,364 14,849,606

10,859,364 14,849,606
Note 12: Other Financial Assets
Short-term deposits with maturity over three months 413,642 1,016,897

As at 31 December 2013 the short-term deposits of $413,642 are pledged to obtain corporate credit cards
of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and bear fixed interest rates from 2.50% to 3.10%

(2012: 4.26% - 4.30%).

As to 31 December 2012, the short-term deposit with maturity over three months of $616,897 represents a

terms deposit with a fixed interest rate at 3%. The remaining Short-term deposits are pledged to obtain

corporate credit cards of the group and bear fixed interest rates from 4.26% to 4.30%.

Concentration of risk by banks

Commonwealth Bank — S&P Rating of A-1+ (2012:A-1+) 3,390 816,897
ANZ Bank — S&P Rating of A-1+ (2012: AA-1+) 410,252 200,000
413,642 1,016,897
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Note
Note 13: Trade and other receivables
Current
Other receivables (a)

Loan to third party

s

Total trade and other receivables

(a) Other receivables

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012

$ $
7,487,140 54,391
1,000,000 -
8,487,140 54,391

Included in other receivables is $7,452,000 being the outstanding consideration on the disposal of U&D.

Refer to note 19 for more information.

(b) Loan to third party

Loan receivable from third party is unsecured and bears interest at 5.00% to U&D Mining Industry

(Australia) Pty Ltd. The loan was repaid on 19 February 2014.

Concentration of credit risk of other receivables and loan to third party

China Kunlun International Holding Limited
Golden Globe Energy Limited

U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd
Other

3,800,000
3,652,000
1,000,000

35,140

8,487,140

All other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. It is expected that these amounts will be received

when due.
Note 14: Inventories

Current
Raw materials

Note 15: Other Assets
Current

Prepayment to suppliers
Other assets

Non-current
Deposit paid (a)

2,613,924

2,613,924

91,503
659,711

212,505

751,214

212,505

4,924,021
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Note 15: Other Assets (continued)

(@) Included in deposit paid is $4,614,021 which represents a deposit in relation to the acquisition of

the Krucible tenements. The remaining balance of $310,000 is a deposit paid for the purchase of

plant and equipment. Refer to note 29 for further details.

Note 16:  Property, Plant and Equipment

Land
At cost

Machinery and vehicles
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Furniture, fittings and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Capital works in progress at cost

Total property, plant and equipment
At cost

Accumulated depreciation

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
5,121,293 5,121,293
320,626 108,227
(25,327) (10,188)
295,299 98,039
82,364 17,159
(6,211) (665)
76,153 16,494
9,629,004 7,740,089
15,153,287 12,986,768
(31,538) (10,853)
15,121,749 12,975,915
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Note 16: Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning

and the end of the current financial year is as follows:

Consolidated Land Machinery Furniture, Capital Total
and vehicles fittings and works in
equipment progress
$ $ $ $ $
1 January 2012 - 19,869 3,633 - 23,502
Additions 5,121,293 265,880 51,308 7,740,089 13,178,570
Depreciation expense - (8,528) (2,328) - (10,856)
Assets derecognised due to loss of
control of subsidiary - (179,182) (36,119) - (215,301)
31 December 2012 5,121,293 98,039 16,494 7,740,089 12,975,915
Additions - 235,627 65,203 1,888,915 2,189,745
Depreciation expense - (23,068) (5,544) - (28,612)
Disposals - (15,299) - - (15,299)
31 December 2013 5,121,293 295,299 76,153 9,629,004 15,121,749

Note 17: Other Financial Assets

Non-current
Guarantee deposits 1,372,901 -

Guarantee deposits represent bank deposits to secure the bank guarantees provided for the office rental,

warehouse rental and the gas connection, which bear fixed interest rates from 3.10% to 3.75%.
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Note 18: Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries
Information relating to the group's interests in principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 is set out below.

Ownership interest

Name of entity Country of incorporation held by group *

2013 2012
% %

Apollo Fertiliser Queensland Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Australia Mercury Glass Pty Ltd** Australia 100 -
Australia Venus Phosphate Fertiliser Pty Ltd** Australia 100 -

* The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.
**These companies were incorporated by Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd during 2013.

Note 19: Investments in associates

Set out below are details of an associate of the Group held during the year ended 31 December 2013
which, in the opinion of the directors, is material to the Group. The entity listed below has share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which were partly held directly by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also its principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest
is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

a) Interests in associate

Name of entity Country of Ownership Consolidated Carrying
incorporation  interest held Value
by group
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % $ $
U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd Australia - 49 - 12,352,651

U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd (‘(U&D’) engages in the acquisition, exploration, development and
operation of coal mines and to supply coal product into the seaborne coal market.
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Note 19: Investments in associates (continued)
b) Movements in carrying amounts

CONSOLIDATED

Note 2013 2012
$ $
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 12,352,651 -
Additions 10,952,941 12,364,683
Share of loss after income tax 19d) (2,223,694) (12,032)
Disposals 19¢) (21,081,898) -
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year - 12,352,651

c) Disposal of interests in associate
On 3 December 2012 the Group disposed of 11% of its ownership interest in U&D. The Group
retained 49% interest, and from the date of selling the 11% interest, considered U&D as an associate
due to the loss of the control over U&D.

On 13 November 2013 the Group disposed of its remaining 49% interest to two third parties for
proceeds of $29,452,000.
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Note 19: Investments in associates (continued)

c) Disposal of interests in associate (continued)

The financial information in relation to those disposals is set out as below.

i) The gain on sale of the Group ownership interest in U&D and loss of control has been

calculated as follows:

Fair value of cash consideration received
Fair value of cash consideration to be received*®

Fair value of retained investment

Add: Carrying value of former subsidiary’s net deficiency

Less: Carrying value of the non-controlling interest

Less: Carrying value of receivable from subsidiary

Less: Carrying value of investment on the date of loss of
significant influence

Gain on interest sold or gain on interest sold and retained

investment before income tax

Income tax expense (net of tax losses utilised)
Gain on interest sold or gain on interest sold and retained
investment after income tax

* Subsequent to year end the Group agreed to extend the repayment term of the remaining balance of
$7.452 million due from the disposal of U & D Mining Industry Pty Ltd from 19 March 2014 to 19 June

2014.

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
Disposal of Disposal of
49% interest 11% interest
$ $
22,000,000 14,190,000
7,452,000 -
- 12,364,683
29,452,000 26,554,683
- 141,745
- (56,698)

(21,081,898)

(16,140,053)

8,370,102 10,499,677
(2,511,031) (3,419,599)
5,859,071 7,080,078
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Note 19: Investments in associates (continued)

c) Disposal of interests in associate (continued)
ii) Net cash flow on disposal of U&D
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
Disposal of Disposal of
49% interest 11% interest
$ $
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 22,000,000 14,190,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of - (13,650,300)
22,000,000 539,700

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale, of its 11% interest (03 December
2012) were:

03 December

2012
$
Cash and cash equivalents 13,650,350
Short-term deposits with maturity over three months 1,700,000
Trade and other receivables 7,823,136
Property, plant and equipment 215,299
Exploration & evaluation assets 25,406,752
Total assets 48,795,487
Trade and other creditors 161,440
Borrowings 48,775,792
Total liabilities 48,937,232
Net assets/ (deficiency) (141,745)
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Note 19: Investments in associates (continued)

d) Summarised other financial information of associate
The table below includes summarised financial information of U&D and not Australia New
Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd’'s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect

adjustments made by the parent entity when using the equity method, such as fair value adjustments

at acquisition and adjustments for differences in accounting policies.

Summarised statement of financial position

13 November

31 December

03 December

2013 2012 2012
$ $ $
Current assets 56,893,435 18,013,846 23,173,486
Non-current assets 110,363,062 25,622,051 25,622,051
Total assets 167,256,497 43,635,897 48,795,487
Current liabilities 124,389,921 18,426,405 48,937,232
Total liabilities 124,389,921 18,426,405 48,937,232
Net assets/ (deficiency) 42,866,576 25,209,492 (141,745)

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount

13 November

31 December

2013 2012
$ $
Closing net assets 42,866,576 25,209,492
Group's share % 49% 49%
Group's share $ 21,081,898 12,352,651
Disposal of 49% interest (21,081,898) -
Carrying amount - 12,352,651
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Note 19: Investments in associates (continued)

d) Summarised other financial information of associate (continued)
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
1 January - 3 December-
13 November 31 December

2013 2012
Revenue 904,787 -
Loss from continuing operations (4,538,150) (24,555)
Loss from discontinued operations (net of tax) - -
Loss for the period (4,538,150) (24,555)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income (4,538,150) (24,555)
Group's share of:
Loss from continuing operations (2,223,694) (12,032)
Total comprehensive income (2,223,694) (12,032)

There are no commitments, contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Note 20: Trade and Other Payables
Current
Other payables and accruals 846,466 763,345
Other payables - U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd 5,000,000 -
Related party payables 1,205,422 7,819,295
7,051,888 8,582,640
Note 21: Borrowings
Current
Unsecured
Loan from third party 700,000 -
700,000 -
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Loan from third party is due on 27 September 2014. It bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.5%.
Note 22: Contributed Equity

a) Share capital

CONSOLIDATED
2013 2012
Shares Shares
Ordinary shares fully paid 211,115,355 36,615,244 211,115,355 36,615,244
b) Movements in ordinary share capital
Date Details Notes Number of Issue price $
shares
1 January 2012 Opening Balance 183,696,000 28,115,244
22 November 2012  New shares issued (i)
resulting from conversion
of notes 27,419,355 $0.31 8,500,000
31 December 2012  Balance 211,115,355 36,615,244
31 December 2013  Closing balance 211,115,355 36,615,244
(i) New shares issued was a result of the conversion of notes on 22 November 2012 at a

conversion price of $0.31 per share. The conversion price was determined by average share
closing price on ASX within 30 business trading days immediately before the conversion date.
After conversion, there is a 6-months escrow period on the converted shares.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shareholders are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Every ordinary
shareholder present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote on a show of hands or

by poll.

c) Capital risk management

The Group considers its capital to comprise the equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus
borrowings net of cash and cash deposits. The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital

requirements.
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Note 22: Contributed Equity (continued)

c) Capital risk management (continued)

In managing its capital, the Group’s primary objective is to ensure its continued ability to provide a
consistent return for its owners through capital growth. In order to achieve this objective, the Group
seeks to maintain a gearing ratio that balances risks and returns at an acceptable level and also to
maintain a sufficient funding base to enable the Group to meet its working capital and strategic investment
needs. In making decisions to adjust its capital structure to achieve these aims, either through altering its
dividend policy or the reduction of debt, the Group considers not only its short-term position but also its
long-term operational and strategic objectives.

It is the Group’s policy to maintain a gearing level of 30% - 50% under normal operating conditions. The
net debt and total equity are shown as below:
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Net Debt - -
Total equity 32,847,611 31,783,125

During the financial year 2013 and 2012, the Group made gain on the disposal of its ownership interest in
associate and subsidiaries and still remained in a net cash position. The funds will be used for the Apollo
Fertiliser project and investing in other opportunities.

There have been no significant changes to the Group’s capital management objectives, policies and
processes in the year nor has there been any change in what the Group considers to be its capital.

Note 23: Financial Risk Management

(a) General objectives, policies and processes

In common with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments. This note describes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those
risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is
presented throughout these financial statements.

There have been no substantive changes in the Group’s exposure to financial instrument risks, its
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from
previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note.
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Note 23: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Activities undertaken by the Group may expose the Group to market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of
the Group’s risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them,
it has delegated the authority to its finance team, for designing and operating processes that ensure the
effective implementation of the objectives and policies of the Group. The Group's risk management
policies and objectives are therefore designed to minimise the potential impacts of these risks on the
results of the Group where such impacts may be material. The Board receives monthly reports from the
Group Financial Controller through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes put in place and the

appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.

The overall objective of the Board is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without

unduly affecting the Group’s competitiveness and flexibility.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group held the following financial instruments:

Note
Current
Cash and cash equivalent 1
Short-term deposits with maturity over 3 months 12
Trade and other receivables 13
Non-current
Guarantee deposits 17
Cash, loans and receivables
Current
Trade and other payables 20
Borrowings 21

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
10,859,364 14,849,606
413,642 1,016,897
8,487,140 54,391
1,372,901 -
21,133,047 15,920,894
7,051,888 8,582,640
700,000 -
7,751,888 8,582,640

The fair value of these current financial instruments is assumed to approximate their carrying value.
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Note 23: Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their obligation
resulting in the Group incurring a financial loss. This usually occurs when debtors or counterparties
to derivative contracts fail to settle their obligations owing to the Group.

To mitigate the credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with
maturity over three months, cash and term deposits are only deposited with reputable financial
institutions. Management considers the credit risk in respect of cash and bank deposits with
financial institutions is relatively minimal as each counter party bears a high credit rating .

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is as below:
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 10,859,364 14,849,606
Short-term deposits with maturity over 3 months 413,642 1,016,897
Trade and other receivables 8,487,140 54,391
Non-current

Guarantee deposits 1,372,901 -
Total 21,133,047 15,920,894

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of financial

asset is the carrying amount of those assets, which is net of impairment losses. Refer to the summary of

financial instruments table above for the total carrying amount of financial assets.

Refer to Note 11, 12 and 13 for concentration of credit risks for cash and cash equivalent and short-term

deposits with maturity over three months and trade and other receivables.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulties raising funds to meet commitments

associated with financial instruments, e.g. borrowing repayments.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the availability of

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Flexibility in funding is maintained by

keeping committed credit lines available.
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Note 23: Financial Risk Management (continued)
(c) Liquidity Risk (continued)

Financing arrangements
No financial arrangement is in place as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Maturity Analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on

contractual commitments.

Note Carrying Contractual 6-12
Amount Cash flows < 6 months months
$ $ $ $

31 December 2013
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing 20 7,051,888 7,051,888 7,051,888 -
Interest bearing borrowings 21 700,000 717,500 - 717,500

7,751,888 7,769,388 7,051,888 717,500
31 December 2012
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing 20 8,582,640 8,582,640 8,582,640 -

8,582,640 8,582,640 8,582,640 -

(d) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest risk arises from the use of interest bearing financial instruments. It is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate
risk).

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest relates primarily to cash at bank of the Group which bears
floating rates. The Group does not have significant exposure to fair value interest rate risk as all the
Group’s borrowings are not designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.
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Note 23: Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

(iy Interest rate risk (continued)
It is the Group’s policy to eliminate interest rate risk over the cash flows on its short-term debt finance
through the use of fixed rate instruments for 12 months. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
continuously. The Group also considers, on a continuous basis, alternative financing opportunities and

renewal of existing positions.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate, by maturity

periods, is set out in the tables below:

Weighted Floating  Fixed rates Non-interest Total
average rates <1 year bearing
interest rate
$ $ $ $
31 December 2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 2.49% 10,854,208 - 5,156 10,859,364
Short-term deposits with maturity
over 3 months 2.79% - 413,642 - 413,642
Trade and other receivables 5.00% - 1,000,000 7,487,140 8,487,140
Guarantee deposits 3.39% - 1,372,901 - 1,372,901
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - (7,051,888) (7,051,888)
Borrowings 2.50% - (700,000) - (700,000)
10,854,208 2,086,543 440,408 13,381,159
31 December 2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.44% 1,248,684 13,600,000 922 14,849,606
Short-term deposits with maturity
over 3 months 3.50% - 1,016,897 - 1,016,897
Trade and other receivables - - 54,391 54,391
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - (8,582,640) (8,582,640)
1,248,684 14,616,897 (8,527,327) 7,338,254
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Note 23: Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax (through the impact on floating
rate financial assets and financial liabilities).

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
+0.04% (4 -0.04% (4 +0.04% (4 -0.04% (4
basis points) basis points) basis points) basis points)
$ $ $ $
Cash at bank 4,342 (4,342) 499 (499)
Tax charge at 30% (2012: 30%) (1,303) 1,303 (150) 150
After tax increase / (decrease) 3,039 (3,039) 349 (349)

Significant assumptions used in interest rate exposure sensitivity analysis:

(i) Reasonable possible movements in interest rates were determined based on the current levels of debt,

relationships with financial institutions and economic forecaster’s expectations

(i) The net exposure at balance date is representative of what the Group was and is expecting to be

exposed to in the next twelve months from balance date.

Note 24: Key Management Personnel Disclosures

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
(a) Compensation
Short-term employee benefits 340,194 241,334
Post-employment benefits 12,751 6,750
352,945 248,084

Further information regarding the identity of key management personnel and their compensation can

be found in Audited Remuneration Report.
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Note 24:

b) Equity instruments

Shareholdings

Details of equity instruments (other than options and rights) held directly, indirectly or beneficially by key

Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

management personnel and their related parties are as follows:

Name

Yinan Zhang
Jun Xiao

Total

Name

Zeng Li
Yinan Zhang

Zoe Yan Zhang

Jun Xiao(iii)

Total

Balance at 1 Received on  Share split Other changes Balance at 31
January 2013 conversion December
of notes 2013
54,048,003 - - (48,000) 54,000,003
49,019,354 - - - 49,019,354
103,607,357 - - (48,000) 103,019,357
Balance at 1 Received on  Share split Other changes Balance at 31
January 2012 conversion December
of notes 2012
25,919,997 - - (25,919,997)(ii) -
36,768,003 - - 17,280,000(i) 54,048,003
72,000 - - (72,000)(ii) -
- 27,419,355 - 21,599,999(iii) 49,019,354
62,760,000 27,419,355 - 13,428,224 103,607,357

No other key management personnel held the Group’s equity instruments.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2012 Mr Yinan Zhang increased his shareholding in two companies that

hold shares in Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd increasing his shareholding in Australia

New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd by 17,280,000 shares.

(i) Mr Zeng Li resigned as a director on 31 May 2012. Zoe Yan Zhang resigned as a director on 2 July 2012.

(iii) Mr Jun Xiao is a director of Flash Lighting Company Limited (Flash Lighting), and holds the shares received in

2012 through Flash Lighting. 27,419,355 shares were issued to Flash Lighting as a result of notes conversion.

Refer to note 22 (b) for more information.

Mr Jun Xiao holds a 50% interest in a company that entitles him to 21,599,999 shares in Australia New

Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd .

68



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CONSOLIDATED
2013 2012
$ $

Note 24: Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

Option holdings
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd has no outstanding options on issue.

c) Aggregate loans from KMP to the Group

Balance at beginning of the year (2,819,295) (1,718,388)
Loans from KMP to the Group - (4,051,002)
Repayment 1,847,600 2,950,095
Effect of movement in foreign exchange - -
Balance at end of year (971,695) (2,819,295)

Representing:
-Continuing operations (971,695) (2,819,295)
-Discontinued operations - -

(971,695) (2,819,295)
d) Aggregate advances from the Group to KMP
Balance at beginning of the year - 582
Loans to KMP - -
Repayment - -
Loans transferred out due to lose control of subsidiaries - (582)

Effect of movement in foreign exchange - -

Balance at end of year - -

As at 31 December 2011 the advance was unsecured and interest free to one KMP from the discontinued
operation, which was for the purpose of corporate operating expenses.

e) Other transactions with KMP

Accounting and tax services

A former director, Mrs Zoe Zhang, provided accounting and tax services to the parent entity and
Australian Golden Star International Pty Ltd, one of the Australian subsidiaries. There was no
service agreement entered with those entities and the fees are charged based on the time spent on
providing the services.

As at 31 December 2012, amount of $8,000 (excluding GST) services fee was incurred and paid
during 2012 financial year. No services fee was paid in 2013.
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Note 25: Related Party Transactions

(a) Subsidiaries and associate
Interests in subsidiaries and associate are disclosed in note 18 and note 19.

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key management personnel
Purchases of goods from related parties
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Balance at beginning of the year - 1,185,000
Prepayments made to other related parties - -
Goods received from related parties - (1,185,000)

Balance at end of year - -

On 15 November 2011, Apollo Fertiliser Queensland Pty Ltd entered into an equipment acquisition
agreement for its compound fertilizer project with a related party, Zhengzhou Luoyang Glass Import and
Export Company Limited (“Luoyang Glass”). The equipment was received during the year ended 31
December 2012.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment from other related parties

During the financial year 2012 Apollo Fertiliser Queensland Pty Ltd acquired $3,555,000 of property, plant
and equipment from Luoyang Glass. This includes the $1,185,000 in relation to the prepayment noted
above. The remaining $2,370,000 was paid, and the property plant and equipment received, during the
2012 year.

During the financial year 2012 the Group also acquired $125,100 of property, plant and equipment from
another related party. There is no outstanding payment as at 31 December 2012 in relation to the

purchases.

No such kind of transaction incurred in 2013.
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Note 25: Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c) Loans from other related parties
CONSOLIDATED

Note 2013 2012
$ $
Balance at beginning of the year (233,727) (9,519,466)
Loans advanced - (3,064,645)
Repayments made to other related parties - 3,114,645
Loan transferred out (i) - 9,235,739
Balance at end of year (233,727) (233,727)

(i) Loans transferred out
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Loans transferred out due to lose of control of subsidiaries® - 9,235,739

*This amount is due to a related party, Flash Lighting Company Limited, by U&D Mining Industry (Australia)
Pty Ltd. Following the loss control of U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd, U&D Mining Industry
(Australia) Pty Ltd is accounted for as an Associate. Therefore, it is transferred out from the disclosure of

loan from other related parties.

All loans from other related parties are interest free, unsecured and are payable on demand. All loans from

other related parties are with continuing operation in Australia.

(d) Loans from associates
CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Balance at beginning of the year (5,000,000) -
Loans transferred in due to lose of control of subsidiaries (a) - (5,000,000)
Loans transferred out due to lose of significant influence of
associate 5,000,000 -
Balance at end of year - (5,000,000)

(@) In 2012 on loss of control of U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd there was a $5,000,000 loan
between Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd and U&D Mining Industry (Australia)
Pty Ltd. Following the loss of control U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd was accounted for
as an Associate and the loan has been disclosed above.
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Note 25: Related Party Transactions (continued)

(d) Loans from associates (continued)

(b) In 2013 following the disposal of the Group’s ownership interest in U&D on 13 November 2013,

U&D is not accounted for as an Associate and the loan has been transferred out of Loans from

associates, shown above.

All loans from associates are interest free, unsecured and are payable on demand. All loans from

associates are with continuing operation in Australia.

Note 26: Cash Flow Information

CONSOLIDATED

2013 2012
$ $
Reconciliation of the profit after tax to the net cash
flows from operations:
Profit for the year 1,064,486 10,790,455
Depreciation of non-current assets 28,612 10,856
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,299 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (13,156,828)
Gain on disposal of associates (8,370,102) -
Share of loss of associates accounted for using the
equity method 2,223,694 12,032
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 37,356 248,565
Increase in inventory (2,613,924) -
Increase in other assets (547,932) (242,886)
Increase in trade and other payables 216,975 319,369
Increase in other liabilities 15,255 62,522
Increase in income tax liabilities 2,833,001 1,096,200
Net cash flow used in operating activities (5,111,280) (859,715)

Non-cash financing

In 2011 the parent company issued $8,500,000 convertible notes to Flash Lighting Company Limited
(“Flash Lighting”), the non-controlling interest of U&D Mining Industry (Australia) Pty Ltd as at 31
December 2011. The notes converted into 27,419,355 ordinary shares of the parent company on 22
November 2012 at a conversion price of $0.31 per share.

No non-cash financing transaction incurred in 2013.
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CONSOLIDATED

Note 2013 2012
$ $
Note 27: Commitments and Contingencies
Capital commitments
Continuing Operation
Property, plant and equipment 1,200,000 395,000
Exploration and evaluation assets 8,387,000 -
9,587,000 395,000
Non-cancellable operating leases
Continuing Operation
As lessee
Payable within one year 1,078,701 21,050
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 3,004,302 -
4,083,003 21,050
As lessor
Receivable within one year 151,027 198,000
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 148,500
151,027 346,500

The continued operation of the Group leases various premises under non-cancellable operating leases
expiring between 1 and 3 years. All leases have annual CPI escalation clauses. The above amounts do
not include amounts for any renewal options on leases. Lease terms usually run for 1 and 3 years with a 1
and 3 year renewal option.
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Note 28:  Parent entity financial information

The following information relates to the parent entity Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd .
The information presented has been prepared using accounting policies that are consistent with those
presented in Note 1.

Parent
2013 2012
$ $

Current asset 19,961,897 15,081,437
Non-current assets 25,675,835 13,832,135
Total assets 45,637,732 28,913,572
Current liabilities 11,656,874 8,488,075
Total liabilities 11,656,874 8,488,075
Contributed equity 36,615,244 36,615,244
Retained earnings (2,634,386) (16,189,747)
Total equity 33,980,858 20,425,497
Profit for the year 13,555,361 382,161
Total comprehensive income for

the year 13,555,361 382,161

Guarantees in relation to subsidiaries
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd does not provide any guarantee to its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Contingent liabilities
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd does not have any contingent liabilities in 2013 (2012:
Nil).

Capital Commitments
Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd does not have any contractual commitments to acquire
property, plant & equipment in 2013 (2012: Nil).



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 29: Subsequent Events

Acquisition of Tenements

On 23rd January 2013, the Group entered into a non-binding indicative proposal with Krucible Minerals Ltd
(ASX code: KRB) to acquire certain phosphate tenements of KRB for a total consideration of $12 million.
The transaction was completed on 16 January 2014, with the payment of the remaining $8,387,000. The
rationale of acquiring the phosphate tenements is consistent with the Group’s intention to secure supply of
phosphate, a key component of compound fertilizer, to its Apollo Fertiliser Project. Upon the transaction
completed, the Group will undertake further exploration works and feasibility studies and will seek partners

to develop the phosphate tenements.
Subsequent to year end the Group agreed to extend the repayment term of the remaining balance of
$7.452 million due from the disposal of U & D Mining Industry Pty Ltd from 19 March 2014 to 19 June

2014.

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group, or the results of those operations.

Note 30: Company Details

(a) Registered Office and Principal Place of Business for continuing operation
Suite G1, 12 Electronics Street, Eight Mile Plains QLD 4113, Australia
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DECLARATION BY DIRECTORS

The directors of the company declare that:

1.

The financial statements, comprising the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of financial position, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity,
accompanying notes, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December
2013 and of its performance for the year ended on that date.

The company has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and unreserved
statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they become due and payable.

The remuneration disclosures included in pages 9 to 14 of the directors’ report (as part of audited
Remuneration Report), for the year ended 31 December 2013, comply with section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001.

The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer of and chief financial
officer required by section 295A.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on

behalf of the directors by:

i

Yinan Zhang
Managing Director

Brisbane

Date: 31 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group
Ltd, which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the
directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled
at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which

BDO Audit Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 022 870 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050

110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited 77
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional

Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania.
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has been given to the directors of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd, would be in the
same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

Opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December
2013 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1(c) in the financial report, which indicates

that the ability of the consolidated entity to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the future

successful raising of necessary funding. This condition, along with other matters as set out in Note 1(c),
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the consolidated
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the consolidated entity may be unable to

realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 9 to 14 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Australia New Agribusiness & Chemical Group Ltd for the
year ended 31 December 2013 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

BDO Audit Pty Ltd
PO

A J Whyte

Director

Brisbane, 31 March 2014
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Corporate Information

Directors Mr. Jun Xiao (Non-Executive Chairman)
Mr. Yinan Zhang (Managing Director)

Ms Julia Yan Zhu (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Yiming Cui (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. James Naiming Li (Non-Executive Director)

Company Secretary MsYi Yang

Registered Office  Suite G1, 12 Electronics Street, BTP
Eight Mile Plains, Brisbane QLD 4113

Mailing Address Suite G1, 12 Electronics Street, BTP
Eight Mile Plains, Brisbane QLD 4113

Principal Places of Business in Australia
Suite G1, 12 Electronics Street, BTP
Eight Mile Plains, Brisbane QLD 4113

Bankers Bank of China Limited, Brisbane Branch
Level 7, 307 Queen St,
Brisbane, QLD 4000

China Construction Bank, Sydney Branch
Suite 33.01, 126 Phillip Street,
Sydney NSW 2000

Commonwealth Bank of Australia, Sunnybank Branch
Shop 70, Sunnybank Plaza,

Cnr Mains & Mccullogh Rds,

Sunnybank, QLD 4109

ANZ, Queen Street Branch,
Level 1, 324 Queen Street,
Brisbane, QLD 4000

Share Register Computershare Investor Services Limited
117 Victoria St, West End
Brisbane QLD 4101

Auditors BDO Audit Pty Ltd
Level 10, 12 Creek St
Brisbane QLD 4000

Internet Address  www.newagribusiness.com.au(English Website)
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